


Memo 
 
From: McFadden & Company 
  380 West Washington Avenue 

Madison, Wisconsin 53703                      
608 251 1350 (Voice)  

 
To:  Madison Landmarks Commission 
  City of Madison Planning Division 
  215 Martin Luther King Jr. Blvd  
  Madison, Wisconsin 5370 
 
Date:  March 22, 2013 
 
Project: Machinery Row  
 
As explained in more detail in the Historic Background attached Machinery 
Row is actually a collection of six separate buildings constructed over a 
period of fourteen years from 1898 through 1912. Though built with 
varying purpose, construction and layouts there is a remarkable visual 
consistency along the front or Williamson Street façade most notably 
evident in the twenty-five large scaled openings each with a pair of double 
hung windows with an arched transom above on the Row’s second floor. 
 
This pattern is only disturbed by the three easternmost openings which 
each have a pair of shorter double windows. It is our intention with the 
permission of the Commission to remove the lower operable windows 
(transoms would stay in place) as well as the recessed brick below and 
install new windows matching in size, color, profile etc the existing 
windows along the façade. 
 
The purpose of this is twofold. First to visually harmonize and strengthen 
the Row’s defining pattern of windows and second to improve the livability 
of the space inside. This latter is particularly important now as the space is 
being transformed from a funky but still utilitarian office into a high touch 



high feel yoga studio which hopes to replicate the feel of its current smaller 
home next door, a photo of which is attached. 
 
We thank you in advance for your attention and ask that you look kindly 
on this proposal and agree that it would be a small but welcome 
improvement to Machinery Row. 
 

 
James McFadden 



Background History of Machinery Row 
 
At the tail end of the Nineteenth Century, the rise of industrialization had 

turned the sale and manufacture of farm implements into a boom business. 
During this time, implement dealers began to cluster in Madison. This central 
location enabled them to service a region that included not only Wisconsin, but 
also neighboring states. By 1902, there were over thirty sales offices, 
showrooms, and warehouses. The largest ones put up their own buildings 
adjacent to the railroad, particularly in the 500 to 700 blocks of Williamson 
Street, an area that came to be known as “Implement Row,” or “Machinery 
Row.” Machinery Row, one of the most prominent of these buildings, is 
actually a series of buildings that were constructed specifically as implement 
houses between 1898 and 1912.  

 
To best understand the history of Machinery Row, it is essential to take a 

brief look at the history of Madison as well. The development of the railroads 
and changes in manufacturing technology and in marketing techniques 
preceded the development of the Machinery Row building and the area in 
which it was located. Early in Madison’s history the 1858 “Business Advertiser” 
bemoaned the fact that Madison’s manufacturing industries were either 
nonexistent of on a “scale far too limited for the wants and necessities of both 
present and future” populations, which included agricultural implements. By 
1866, the City Directory reported that agricultural implement shipments from 
Madison had reached over 70,000 pounds eastward and 2.6 million pounds 
westward.  

 
From its small beginnings, Madison was recognized for its central location 

and it developed into a major distribution center for agricultural implements. 
The large manufacturers found it more profitable to have branch locations 
from which their stock could be supplied without delay, rather than shipping 
directly from their factories. Fortunately for Madison, railroad lines reaching in 
nine directions tied it to the prosperous communities and fertile farmlands of 
Wisconsin, Iowa, and northern Illinois.  

 
An “Implement Row” area of Madison naturally developed around the East 

Madison railroad depots, the core of which was roughly bounded by Lake 
Monona, East Washington Avenue, South Blair Street, and South Livingston 
Street. A key parcel in this district was the Daggett and Gill lake property, 
which contained old frame buildings used as tobacco warehouses, ice houses, 
and produce storage. By 1888, they had converted their ice buildings and were 
renting space to implement dealers. In 1889, the Advance Thresher Com. 



became a long term resident of the site. In the Sept 19,1898 Wisconsin State 
Journal, it was reported that though few Madisonians knew of the industrial 
Implement Row district, its two blocks contained fifteen businesses which 
combined to do over a million dollars a year in business.  

 
Within a few years, the Daggett-Gill property was being referred to as 

“Machinery Row” and business was booming. By 1903, Madison had thirty 
implement companies trading in two million dollars' worth of business, a 
doubling in a little over six years. During this time, it seemed there was never 
enough space available for these businesses. For example, when the 
McCormick Harvesting Machine Company opened a local branch in 1895, it 
was unable to find a suitable building. They finally built their own in 1898 with 
the latest in machinery handling equipment; before long; the McCormick 
building was considered the “King of Implement Row.”  

 
In response to the demand for space, The Estate of Timothy Brown 

purchased the Daggett-Gill property in 1898. Listed in 1902 as Madison’s 
second-largest taxpayer, the Brown Estate was built on the banking/utility 
fortune of Timothy Brown and managed by his two sons, Frank and Frederick. 
The Browns immediately began to replace the wooden structures with 
substantial brick buildings. The significance of their improvements to 
Machinery Row was made clear in 1898 by the railroad’s motivation to raise 
and improve the spur track that ran along the back of the property. In fact, the 
original section of Machinery Row occupied by Advance Thresher was 
described in 1899 as a “magnificent building…which is the first and most 
complete of any implement branch house in the country.”  

 
It is interesting to note that even though Machinery Row was originally 

designed and built as an implement house, it was never used exclusively for that 
purpose. While the main section (601-611) was used by implement businesses 
up until 1954 when Allis-Chalmers vacated the building, the other rental units 
housed a wide variety of tenants. Most were distributors, factories, and 
warehouses tied to the railroad. These businesses included, at least through the 
1930’s, fruits and produce, building materials, plumbing and heating, engines 
and machines, tools, printing, electrical supplies, chemicals, paint, candy 
factories, and even ladies’ underwear.  

 
The Machinery Row Building was designed in a late commercial Romanesque 

Revival Style by the prominent architectural firm Conover and Porter. The firm 
was formed in 1887 and dissolved in 1899, shortly after the first sections of 
Machinery Row were built. After the dissolution of the firm, Lew F. Porter 



supervised the remaining work on the building. During their partnership, 
Conover and Porter constructed three jails, thirty schoolhouses, six churches, 
eight banks, three large hotels, and one hundred residences. Prominent among 
these were the old UW boathouse, the UW-Madison’s Old Red Gym, the 
Senate Tavern, the Ag Dean’s residence at 10 Babcock Drive, and the Brown 
House at 121 E. Gilman. The firm was a training ground for young architects, 
including Louise Clause, John Flad, Alvin Small, and Frank Lloyd Wright.  

 
Machinery Row was built piecemeal, with brick buildings gradually replacing 

the older frame ones. 601-607 Williamson was finished in 1898, 621-623 in 
1899, 613-615 in 1901, 625-627 by August 1902, and 609-611 some time after 
August 1902. The center of the row at 617-619 Williamson remained frame 
until as late as July 1912, when a fire struck the building that attracted a crowd 
of thousands. After an estimated $12,000 worth of damage, new buildings were 
erected in replacement, finally completing Machinery Row. 

 
 

Awards  
 
1999 Orchid Award 
1999 Wisconsin Trust for Historic Preservation Award 
2004 Wisconsin Historical Society Preservation Award 
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(3) Windows to be Replaced

Williamson Street
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Existing Site / Second Floor Plan @ 1” = 30'
Window Replacement @ Machinery Row

613 Williamson Street, Madison, Wisconsin
March 16, 2012
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Proposed Partial Elevation @ 1/8" = 1"-0"Existing Partial Elevation @ 1/8" = 1"-0"

Williamson Street Elevation @ 1" = 20'

Existing & Proposed Williamson Street Elevations
Window Replacement @ Machinery Row

613 Williamson Street, Madison, Wisconsin
March 16, 2012
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View Prior to RenovationExisting View from the North West

Existing View from the North East

Window Detail

Window Replacement @ Machinery Row
613 Williamson Street, Madison, Wisconsin

March 18, 2012

Window Detail

Windows in the Existing "The Studio" Space

View from the North East




